
SPECIAL MEETING HELD BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

FOR THE TOWN OF OCEAN RIDGE, FLORIDA, TO BE HELD IN THE TOWN 

HALL ON THURSDAY, JANUARY 15, 1998, AT 8:00 A.M. 

 

The meeting was called to order and roll call was answered by the following: 

 

  Commissioner Bingham   Commissioner Gimmy 

  Commissioner Lucibella   Commissioner Northrup 

      Chairman Ford 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. November 20, 1997 

B. November 24, 1997 

 

Mr. Gimmy requested that Page three (fourth paragraph) of the Nov. 20, 1997 minutes be 

changed to reflect that he felt that the Planning & Zoning Commission should express 

their feelings even if the Town Commission does not agree. 

 

Mrs. Bingham requested that Page four (first paragraph) of the Nov. 20, 1997 minutes be 

changed from are to should be.   She also requested that Page one (eighth paragraph) of 

the Nov. 24, 1997 minutes be changed from wash to fill and add up to grade at the end of 

the sentence. 

 

Mr. Gimmy moved to adopt both sets of minutes as amended, seconded by Mr. Lucibella. 

 

Motion carried – Yea 5. 

 

At this point Chairman Ford requested to discuss the landscape code first. 

 

IV. DISCUSS FUTURE MEETING SCHEDULE TO READDRESS LANDSCAPE 

CODE AND MISC ISSUES 

 

Chairman Ford commented that he had appeared before the Town Commission regarding 

the proposed Landscape Code and explained the P & Z philosophy but was advised that 

they wanted the P & Z to review the proposed code again.  He suggested that the P & Z 

Commission recommend proposing the Landscape Code as originally submitted again. 

 

Mr. Lucibella stated that he felt the P & Z did an excellent job reviewing the code, 

however, he came away from the Commission meeting feeling that there could be some 

additional changes and that the P & Z may have gotten carried away with some of the 

regulations.  He added that it was pointed out that enforceability could be difficult and the 

proposed code just seemed too complicated.  

 

Mrs. Bingham advised that she would like to request information from the Attorney on 

how we could accomplish a simpler code while still complying with State and Federal 

mandates. 

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF P & Z COMMISSION ON JAN. 15, 1998 

 2

Town Manager Lanker stated he agreed with Mrs. Bingham and felt some of the laws in 

the code were overly complicated and some may not even be applicable.  He stated that 

he felt there could be additional changes to possibly simplify the code. 

 

Mr. Northrup commented that he felt the town should not adopt another municipality’s 

code and the town should implement and enforce its own code.  He stated that the 

original reason for revising the code was to prevent the destruction of mature native trees 

and vegetation when older homes are demolished to build a new monster home.  He 

added that he felt the Commission should adopt this code and not weaken it any further. 

 

Mr. Lucibella questioned the relation between monster homes and landscape.  He 

understood the prime mover for the landscape code was water management not 

beautification.   He stated that he felt it was appropriate to review other smaller 

municipality’s codes. 

 

Mr. Gimmy stated that he was also at the Town Commission meeting and felt their major 

concern was the cost to homeowners to comply with the code and he did not understand 

their thinking.  He added that he felt the P & Z did a good job on the code and did not 

feel it should be rewritten adding that  he felt the Commission was “Nit Picking”.   

Chairman Ford commented that the code was a matter of perception and it was not 

requiring an owner to do anything additional that they would not have bore costs for 

anyway.  He agreed that he felt they were “Nit Picking”. 

 

Mrs. Bingham advised that the Commission felt the different water requirements for 

different zones may present a problem but they don’t understand that it is not a major 

problem.  She also stated that she felt there was some self-interest on the part of the 

Commission. 

 

Mr. Lucibella stated that he agreed with the other member’s feelings but he also feels that 

the Commission doesn’t understand the code and maybe some background information 

would be helpful.  He added that Comm O’Hare brought up the practicality on zoning 

water in different areas and he agrees that maybe too much was placed in the code.  

 

Mrs. Bingham stated that the Commission had discussed the possibility of a joint meeting 

with the P & Z.  Chairman Ford stated that they advised that several issues could be 

discussed jointly.   

 

Mr. Northrup stated that he felt the proposed tree ordinance was extremely important to 

prevent the population of violative trees and the destruction of valuable native trees. He 

added that the tree section was how the total revision to the Landscape Code was 

initiated.     

 

Town Manager Lanker commented that the water regulations could be enforced by the 

South Florida Water Management (SFWM) requirements thereby taking care of that 

portion of the ordinance.  He stated that the Commission had strong opinions on the tree 

section of the proposed ordinance and that Comm O’Hare did not feel the town should 



SPECIAL MEETING OF P & Z COMMISSION ON JAN. 15, 1998 

 3

mandate what the homeowners could do with their property.  Mrs. Bingham stressed that 

she felt trees definitely enhance the town charm. 

 

Chairman Ford reiterated his earlier comment that the Commission should be advised that 

the P & Z felt that after considerable research they developed the Landscape Code to the 

best of their ability.  He added that if the Commission should make any additional 

changes, adding that the P & Z was not a secretary service. 

 

Mr. Gimmy stated that after hearing from Town Manager Lanker that the water 

regulations could be covered by the SFWM then maybe it could be resubmitted deleting 

that information from the proposed code. 

 

Town Manager Lanker suggested that staff return one more time with a possible simpler 

version but still containing everything the board feels is necessary.  He added that the  

proposed code is a little complicated and would be tough to implement.  Mrs. Bingham 

agreed.  Mr. Northrup stated that maybe the board unintentionally made the code more 

complicated as they continued work on it. 

 

The P & Z ended the conversation in agreement that they felt the Commission was “Nit 

Picking” but also acknowledged that they had an overall feeling that they did not 

understand the proposed code. 

 

V. DISCUSS RIGHT-0F-WAYS LOCATED EAST OF SR A1A INCLUDING 

EDITH ST., ANNA STREET, CORRINE ST., THOMPSONST., PORTER ST., 

BEACHWAY DR.., AND THE DIAMOND BEACH CROSSOVER 

 

Chairman Ford questioned the new walkover at Corrine Street.  Town Manager Lanker 

advised that the walkover was a 3’ wide rolldown structure on private property. 

 

Mrs. Bingham commented that she felt the issue of walkovers should have been 

discussed 5 years ago and was pleased it was being discussed now. 

 

Concerning the Corrine St. ROW Chairman Ford questioned whether the rolldown 

structure was immediately adjacent to the ROW.  Mr. Lanker advised that it was and 

added that the town property was currently inaccessible.   

 

Mr. Northrup questioned the width of the Corrine St. ROW to which he was advised that 

it was 20’ wide. 

 

Chairman Ford questioned whether the town owned a ROW at Tropical Drive.  Town 

Manager Lanker advised that a private individual owned a section of the roadway and a 

5’ wide strip of land east of Old Ocean Blvd.  

 

Town Manager Lanker advised that the Diamond Beach crossover was deeded over to the 

town when it was constructed and is listed on the tax rolls. 

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF P & Z COMMISSION ON JAN. 15, 1998 

 4

Concerning Beachway Dr., Town Manager Lanker advised that there is currently a 

walkover on the 20’ ROW maintained by the town. 

 

Town Clerk Hancsak questioned what actually needed to be discussed on the ROW’s 

already containing walkovers other than maintenance.  Mr. Northrup agreed and 

questioned why they needed to be addressed.  Town Manager Lanker advised that the 

Town Commission directed the P & Z to review the ROW’s (including those east of SR 

A1A) and determine whether crossovers should be permitted. 

 

Mrs. Bingham stated that she felt the Commission wanted the P & Z to decide whether a 

public crossover would preclude private owners from building crossovers. 

 

Chairman Ford questioned the Porter St. crossover to which he was advised that this 

crossover was public with posted signs. 

 

Concerning the Thompson St. ROW Town Manager Lanker commented that there is an 

existing footpath through to the sand.   He added that this might be one location that 

could be recommended for a crossover citing that it is definitely used for beach access.  

Mr. Gimmy added that he believed that George Evans uses this location to gain access to 

the beach with the beach vehicle.  Mr. Lucibella commented that the footpath encourages 

people to keep using the path.  He questioned the width of the ROW to which he was 

advised that it was 20’. 

 

Mr. Lanker mentioned that there is currently no pathway across the dune at the Corrine 

St. ROW and the town recently removed an Australian pine from that area. 

 

Regarding the Edith St. ROW Mr. Lucibella inquired if the town was currently utilizing 

this ROW to which he was advised that the town was not.  He then stated that the town 

might risk losing this ROW if not maintained occasionally.  Mr. Gimmy asked if any 

residents had deeded beach access rights to this ROW.  Mr. Lanker advised that it is a 

public ROW and no one had specific deeded rights to Edith St.  

 

At this point Mr. Lanker showed where the ROWs were located on the County plat map. 

 

Mr. Lucibella commented that the Diamond Beach, Edith, Beachway, and Porter St. 

ROWs were mute points now and the board should only be concerned with Corrine or the 

Thompson ROWs.  He added that he felt Thompson was an ideal location for a crossover.  

He also stated that he did not feel the town needed two crossovers. 

 

Mrs. Bingham stated that she feels the Corrine ROW is inaccessible because the residents 

have made it that way to prevent a possible crossover.  Mr. Lucibella stated that he felt 

the ROW should be maintained more efficiently.   

 

Mrs. Bingham then asked the longest distance between crossovers to which she was 

advised approximately 1,000 feet.  She then stated that the town should maintain the 

current crossovers but not add any new ones because the people could walk to a 



SPECIAL MEETING OF P & Z COMMISSION ON JAN. 15, 1998 

 5

crossover.  Mr. Lucibella respectfully disagreed stating that he felt Old Ocean Blvd. was 

highly used as a pedestrian walkway for mainly residents and felt there would be no 

problem constructing a crossover at Thompson.  He agreed that all beachfront owners  

wanting crossovers does create an aesthetics problem but could possibly be deterred by 

making it mandatory that public access be provided.  Mr. Northrup commented that it 

would be difficult to prevent residents from having their own crossing. 

 

Mr. Northrup stated that at the time he was reluctant to approve the Beachway Dr. 

crossover because he felt a lot of nonresidents utilize it.  Mr. Lucibella disagreed stating 

that he felt mainly residents use that crossover. 

 

Mrs. Bingham stated that she was concerned with preserving as much of the dune as 

possible.   She added that she felt violators walking over the dune should be issued a 

heavy fine.  Mr. Lucibella questioned whether the dune was really being impacted 

because of the path at Thompson St. Mrs. Bingham responded by saying that the dune 

will be damaged and erode further.   

 

Mr. Gimmy stated that he would be in favor of a rolldown structure at Thompson St.  

such as the new fenced in one just south of Corrine St. Mr. Gimmy commented that while 

he could understand the residents by Thompson St. may object to the crossover he felt it 

would be for the good of the community.  Mr. Lucibella added that the crossover would 

be low to the ground and narrow.  Mr. Northrup questioned the maintenance for this type 

of crossover to which Town Manager Lanker advised that the maintenance would be 

minimal.  He stated that a couple of the existing crossovers may need to be rebuilt soon 

which will cost far greater than the one directly on the ground.  He also stated that the 

one on the ground could be replaced easily and pulled back in the event of a hurricane.   

He then added that the State and the Town Commission now accept and favor this type of 

crossover.  Chairman Ford questioned if this crossover could be made with recycled 

plastic to which Mr. Northrup advised that it would be much more expensive and could 

become slippery thereby creating a liability.  Mr. Northrup also stated the texture wears 

out.   

 

Chairman Ford stated he felt a Thompson St. crossover would be utilized mainly by the 

residents because there is no parking near that area.  He stated it appeared that the general 

consensus was that the existing crossovers and ROWs should be maintained and that 

once surveys are obtained they could decide if new crossovers should be recommended.  

Town Clerk Hancsak asked the board if they wanted surveys on all the east ROWs.  Mr. 

Lucibella stated that he felt surveys weren’t necessary for all of the ROWs on the east 

side.  Mr. Lucibella stated that the priority should be to properly maintain the ROWs so 

there is no threat of losing them and if a survey was needed to determine how to maintain 

or for possible future crossover purposes then a survey should be obtained.  Mrs. 

Bingham stated that the town might possibly determine the ROW from looking at the 

stakes for neighboring properties.  Mr. Gimmy agreed stating that there were new owners 

at Corrine St.  

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF P & Z COMMISSION ON JAN. 15, 1998 

 6

Town Clerk Hancsak clarified that the board wanted the town to maintain the existing 

crossovers and ROWs and wait for the Thompson and Corrine St. surveys (already 

approved) to come back before deciding if surveys were needed for the east side of A1A.  

Town Manager Lanker stated that the Town Atty was not as concerned with losing the 

east ROWs if not maintained as the west ROWs. 

 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 9:30 AM. 

 

At this point Bill Olinger, 5906 N. Ocean Blvd., requested to address the Commission 

concerning the ROWs so the meeting was reconvened.   Mr. Olinger advised that he 

currently resides in the Charles Owens Subdivision which is just south of Thompson St.  

He commented that he felt Thompson St. would be the best location for an additional 

crossover citing that the area has the least restrictions and would provide better access.  

He also said that he believes there is more pedestrian traffic, including individuals 

carrying over kayaks and catamarans, at Thompson St. 

 

Mrs. Bingham questioned if the catamarans and kayaks could be carried over the wooden 

walkdown structure to which she was advised they could.   

 

Mr. Lucibella asked Mr. Olinger if he felt the neighbors would object to foot traffic 

traveling across the dune.  Mr. Olinger stated he did not feel they would object because 

the crossover would be public and they travel across it already.  Mr. Lucibella also asked 

him if he felt the security level would decrease to which Mr. Olinger advised that he 

would not feel any less secure. 

 

The meeting was adjourned again at approximately 9:40 AM. 

 

       __________________________ 

       Chairman Ford 

 

        

___________________________ 

Town Clerk 

          


